Amendment No. 1

AHRQ-08-10032 - Publishing, Public Affairs, and Knowledge Transfer Communications Support for OCKT
The purpose of this amendment is to:

1. Respond to Questions

2. Revise Performance Standards.  An incorrect version was released with the RFP.

3. Provide a listing of current KT activities.  (Attachment 1)
4. Provide an Interested Vendor List.  (Attachment 2)
Response to questions received:

1. The SOW requires the contractor to recruit qualified staff for publishing, public affairs, KT, and implementation support. May the contractor recruit from and build upon the current pool of senior and other staff members, in particular, existing healthcare specialists? 

It is the responsibility of the offeror to recruit staff – existing or new.  

2. Is there an incumbent for this work and if so are they invited to re-bid for this work? 

The incumbent is MasiMax Resources, Inc.  

Any offerors that are 8(a) organizations are invited to submit a proposal on this solicitation.   

3. Project Management Phase-In Tasks (refer to 1.6.1)

· Are all incumbent contractors located in Rockville, Maryland and available for the phased-in period? 
The majority of the personnel work on-site in Rockville, MD. 
4. Interface with Other Contractors (refer to 1.6.3)

· What are the type of OCKT support services in areas associated with the requirements of the Contract?
AHRQ Library, Web, KT, and Exhibit logistics contractors, as well as contractors working in other programmatic areas of AHRQ that interface with our communications office (for example, AHRQ’s Eisenberg Center). 
5. Writing and Editing Process (refer to C.1.7.2).

· Are researcher/authors/subject matter experts easy to reach and responsive to editorial inquiries? 
Yes, most work at AHRQ.

· Does the budget include the expense for permissions that must be purchased for both print and online usage? 
Yes, but this is not a frequent occurrence. 
· Is there a written editorial/proofreading process manual or must one be developed? 
Processes are established and documented in AHRQ’s Publishing and Communications Style Guide.

6. Misc. Publishing-Related Activities (refer to C.1.7.4).

· Journal editors – Is there an existing pool of such editors that AHRQ contracts with or should additional journal editors be contracted? Is the journal editor’s hourly cost—if applicable—under the purview of this contract?

AHRQ does not have en existing pool outside of this contract. The effort requires general editorial work as described in the SOW and liaison with Journal editors to ensure placement of approximately 20 articles per year—mostly USPSTF work, but there may be additional liaison work with journals regarding placement or editorial tasks.
· What software program do you currently use for database tracking? 
Word, Excel, Acess.
· What are the three-to-six annual meetings attended by the agency and where are they located? 
These are meetings of national medical and professional organizations and may be held anywhere across the U.S. (For example, the National Patient Safety Foundation, AcademyHealth, American College of Physicians Annual Meeting.)

· Slides – What software is used to manage and maintain the slide library?
Microsoft PowerPoint
7. Outreach and Partnerships (C.1.8.5).

· Re “Writing materials in other languages” – what language capabilities, other than Spanish and English, are required?
None.
· Do you have a mailing list for the electronic newsletter or will the contracted firm be expected to develop the list? 
We have a mailing list.
8. Scope of KT and Implementation Activities (C.1.9.3)

· What systems are being/will be used to support KT?
AHRQ has 2-4 contracts that handle KT projects assigned by AHRQ Federal staff. The contractor on this award will serve functions internal to AHRQ with regard to KT activities.

9. Past Performance Question (refer to L.11.1:  “… list all contracts and 

subcontracts currently in process.”)  Is there a maximum number of current contracts/subcontracts examples we need to provide for the past performance section?  
No. 

10. Is this a new requirement or a re-compete?  If it is a re-compete, who is the incumbent contractor, and what is the total contract value?  If there is an incumbent contractor for the works stated in the RFP are they allowed to bid on this RFP?

See response to question 2.  The total value of the current contract is $12,642,474.  AHRQ cannot comment on the 8(a) status of the incumbent.

11. If a new contractor (other than the incumbent) is awarded the contract, are there any of the current on-site contractor employees available to transfer to the new contractor?  Should the contractor expect that AHRQ also will suggest potential staff to consider?

See response to question 1.  It is the responsibility of the offeror to propose staff for this project.

12. If there is an incumbent, will there be an overlap period for transitioning works? If so, is that the same as the phase-in period?

Yes to both.

13. Page 9 (item C.1.4) of the SOW indicates the phase-in is 1 month, while page 11, (item C.1.6.1) indicates 6 weeks.  Please clarify.
AHRQ would like to have a 6 week phase-in period however it will depend on how soon the contract is awarded.  It may end up only being 1 month.
14. Please confirm that AHRQ will provide all office equipments, including computers, copiers, printers, Internet access, associated software, telephone, and fax machine in the contractor’s Program Management Office (PMO)?  Also, how many office spaces will be allocated to the PMO?  Will the offeror be responsible for rental charges for this space?
AHRQ will provide office space and equipment for on-site staff, as deemed appropriate by AHRQ. We will not provide office space or equipment for off-site subcontractors and/or off-site staff.

15. Who are the current contractors supporting the AHRQ Publications Clearinghouse and Information Resources Center, and who performs research dissemination and implementation activities on the Agency?  Are they eligible to compete for this solicitation?
AHRQ’s Publications Clearinghouse Contractor is SOC and the Information Resources Center is currently STG International, Inc.   Any certified 8(a) organization with Communications/Marketing/Publishing qualifications may compete for this requirement.  
16. Can AHRQ provide the latest available statistics of the publication printed and distributed through OCKT during the past year (2007) and the website web trend reports of the last 3 months for reference of preparing the proposal?
All publications of AHRQ are available at www.ahrq.gov. The AHRQ Publications Catalog provides a reasonable estimate of work volume. However, this contract is for selected publications support in writing, editing, copyediting, and outside journal publishing coordination. We estimate the need for up to 5 FTEs in this area to be assigned to selected publications. There is no Web coding. Staff would be required to proof and verify coded products for the Web site. 
17. Are there any existing AHRQ exhibit banners etc. available for continuous use in the new contract?  If not, please provide guidelines to budget the design and production of these materials for exhibits.
AHRQ designs and maintains all exhibit structures, storage, upkeep, shipping to meetings etc.,
18. Are all the exhibits to be based in the Washington-DC metropolitan area?  If not, please provide guideline for budgeting purpose.  Please include detail of the materials, number of copies, etc. of the materials to be provided at the exhibits.
AHRQ staffs approximately 27 large national exhibits per year. Of these, we anticipate that the contractor may provide 1 -2 staff for up to 6 exhibits. Assume 2 east coast, 2 mid U.S. and 2 West Coast.  It is also conceivable that contractor staff would attend smaller, local meetings as part of normal operations.
19. Please provide guideline to budget the audience research activities, including the face-to-face interviews, focus groups, web-based survey.  How many focus groups and web-based survey to be conducted per year?  Are focus groups to be conducted in formal facilities with recruitment and incentives?  Are they to be conducted locally or throughout the country?
The number of focus group studies varies from year to year.  Assume an average of 4 distinct focus group projects (usually based on the number of consumer/patient products developed annually by AHRQ). Each focus group project would have 2-4 sets of consumer/patient focus groups. We may also conduct 2 or more focus group projects that involve health care providers per year. And it is possible that we might also have 2-4 focus group projects targeting Spanish-speaking consumers. Our goal is to identify representative populations and to use the most cost effective approach for identifying facilities, such as field houses and other facilities to provide focus group subjects. Whenever possible, local venues (or rarely those within 1-3 hours auto travel time) are preferred. Standard focus group practices for recruitment and incentives can be assumed. Web-based surveys are not likely (no more than 1 per year), but if necessary, will require OMB clearance. 

20. Is there any budget set aside in AHRQ for media buy during the next contract?

No.
21. Please provide the titles and brief descriptions of the10 new and 7 ongoing knowledge transfer projects at AHRQ. 
See Attachment 1 below.  
22. The cover letter indicated the technical proposal is limited to 100 pages and double-spaced, while in page 59 it was stated as single-spaced.  Please clarify.

This is a typo – please double space your proposal.

23. Is the contractor’s designated Program Manager (or alternate) required to be on site full-time?
Yes.

24. Please provide budget guidelines for organizing 25 meetings per year.
These are meetings with potential partners in dissemination of AHRQ products or messages; for example, meeting with AARP at their or our offices, or occasionally, attendance at a conference to facilitate partnerships. Generally the meetings and conferences are local meetings or can be conference calls, etc. Occasionally, an out of town meeting may be necessary—2-3 times per year at most.
25. Are all 6 media events to be based in the Washington, DC area?  If it is outside of the DC area, please provide budget guideline.
It is possible, but not likely, that we would host an event outside of Washington, DC.  We would assume that 1-3 contract staff may be involved in these events.
26. Can government list the ways how all stakeholder groups currently access or obtain information/publications from AHRQ?
Direct mail, exhibits/meetings, hard copy from AHRQ Publications Clearinghouse, download from AHRQ Web site, partnerships, pitches (including e-mail pitches), Webinars.

27. Can government provide an estimate on percentage of works that needed to be translated into Spanish?
All English patient guides are translated to Spanish (see AHRQ Web site).

28. What technology is AHRQ's current publication database based on, such as Oracle, MS-SQL, or any other proprietary products?
Oracle.  It is maintained in-house at AHRQ. Staff is only required to enter information and will be given requisite training

29. Does AHRQ have contracts that provide services similar in scope to those described in this RFP.  If so who are the incumbents, total contract values, and are they eligible to bid on this proposal?

No – other than the incumbent as mentioned above.

30. Please confirm whether offeror is responsible for purchase or lease of any equipment or software required to perform contract services.

The Government will provide all necessary equipment and software for on-site personnel.

31. Throughout the RFP there is the mention of “tools.”  Please define and provide examples for the term “tools” that is used within this RFP.  We also noticed in a different AHRQ solicitation the usage of the term “toolkits.”  Are these terms used interchangeably, if not then how are they different from one another?
Tools mean products, in print or electronic form that can be used to implement AHRQ research. Toolkits generally refer to a grouping of products—packaged or promoted together—toolkits may also include information on Web-based materials developed by AHRQ, print products, other materials.
32. Resumes – P. 58 indicates that “Resumes or CVs are only required for key personnel.”  The instructions on p. 61 specify the inclusion of an organizational chart and an indication, for each person named for the proposed effort, a list of contracts on which they are currently obligated. The 3rd bullet says “Provide resumes for each of the staff referenced in the section above.”  Are we to provide a resume for all staff, or only key staff?
Provide resumes for key staff.

33. Line Spacing – The Solicitation Form says “The technical proposal should be limited to 100 typewritten pages (double-spaced, single sided).”  On p. 59, the instructions say “Proposals shall be prepared in single-spaced format.”  Please clarify if single- or double-spaced format is preferred.
See response to question 22.

34. Past Performance – The Solicitation Form lists Technical Proposal, Past Performance Information, and Business Proposal as separate sections.  The instructions on p. 59, (4), 4), list Past Performance as a section of the Technical Discussion.  Should Past Performance be separate, or part of the Technical Proposal?
Past Performance should be a separate volume – not part of the technical proposal.

35. Business Proposal – If a subcontractor wishes to submit their cost detail to the Government under sealed envelope, please advise on the specific items that are required to be incorporated into this submission.
A subcontractor may submit a sealed cost estimate with the original prime business proposal.  The level of detail must match that of what is required for the prime.

REVISED PERFORMANCE STANDARDS

AQL=Acceptable Quality Level; RS=Random Sampling; CS=Customer Satisfaction; SM=Surveillance Method; New PS=New Performance Standard # for SOW

	PS #
	SOW Sect.
	Task Description
	Performance Requirement
	AQL
	SM

	
	1.6
	Project Management
	
	
	

	1
	1.6
	Revise Phase-in Plan
	Submit a revised Phase-In Plan after award for evaluation by the Project Officer and approval by the Contract Officer within the first 3 weeks of the start of the contract. (also Deliverable #1) Plan shall be clear, complete and useful; and describe specific procedures for assuming responsibility for all contract tasks.  
	90%
	100%

	2
	1.6
	Submit employee rosters 
	Submit accurate employee rosters no later than 10 days prior to the start of the first performance period with back-up resumes as requested.  Revised as staffing changes and as necessary. (also Deliverable #5)
	90%
	100%

	3
	1.6
	Obtain required staffing at 15 and 45 day time frames during Phase-in
	Hire the appropriate number of qualified staff by day 15 and day 45 of the phase-in period, and report hiring to the Project Officer.
	100%
	100%

	4
	1.6
	Prepare Monthly Activities Report
	Monthly activities report is submitted not later than 10 days after the end of the previous month. Report is clear, complete, accurate and useful; and contains items stated in contract and/or requested by AHRQ.
	100%
	100%

	5
	1.6
	Prepare Monthly Budget Report
	Monthly budget report is submitted not later than days after the end of the previous month. Report is clear, complete, accurate and useful; and contains items stated in contract and/or requested by AHRQ.
	100%
	100%

	6
	1.6
	Maintain sufficient number of qualified project staff throughout contract.

	Project staff demonstrate the knowledge, abilities and experience appropriate for their respective tasks. A sufficient number of project staff is provided for each of the individual asks.


	100%
	100%

	7
	1.6
	Perform quality control of all services and products. 
	An effective quality control system is provided, as demonstrated by (1) ongoing documentation and review of problems that occur; (2) a process to ensure that problems are adequately addressed and resolved; and (3) sound quality control of services and deliverables with respect to accuracy and completeness of content, compliance with SOW requirements,, and editorial accuracy.


	90%
	RS

	8
	1.6
	Provide prompt notification to PO of issues and problems and responses to PO questions. 
	PO is notified promptly of any problems (technical, schedule, staffing, or cost) that could impact successful completion of the individual tasks or deliverables. Potential impact of the problem(s) on schedule, cost, or content of the required services or deliverables is described; and practical solutions are recommended. Timely and useful responses are provided to PO questions are on project technical performance, schedule, budget and other issues.

	100%
	100%

	
	1.7
	Publishing
	
	
	

	9
	1.7
	Develop clearances (Publishing docs only)
	Clearances are accurately drafted and meet timing requirement.
	90%
	100%

	10
	1.7
	Publish and produce all AHRQ products 
	Products are finalized by established deadline, comply with format and other specifications, and meet AHRQ Pub. & Communications Guidelines or Journal editorial standards - hard copy and Web.
	90%
	100%

	11
	1.7
	Write and/or update editorial guidance documents
	Guidance documents are updated as appropriate to reflect the changes in AHRQ policy and appropriately distributed.
	90%
	100%

	12
	1.7
	Translate health research information and write syntheses
	Syntheses are accurate and approved by required due date.
	90%
	100%

	13
	1.7
	Write and produce consumer materials and tools
	Materials appropriately written for the audience; designed and produced according to production schedule. 
	90%
	100%

	14
	1.7
	Edit and/or format documents and publications
	Documents and publications appropriately edited (level of editorial intervention - production, copy, substantive and journal standards).
	90%
	RS

	15
	1.7
	Provide art direction and presentation support
	Presentation support is provided in a timely manner as measured by pre-agreed upon project timelines. 
	90%
	RS

	16
	1.7
	Manage the AHRQ slide library 
	Slide library content is current and slides are appropriately formatted according to AHRQ style.
	90%
	RS

	
	1.8
	Public Affairs 
	
	
	

	17
	1.8
	Develop and contribute to speeches 
	Speeches and all supporting materials are written for specific audiences in a professional manner, properly focused, coordinated, cleared, and submitted to the Director on agreed upon timelines.
	95%
	100%

	18
	1.8
	Develop Commentaries and place Commentaries in major publications
	Commentaries well written, properly focused, properly coordinated, and cleared, meet the requirements of formal agreements and submitted to the PO on agreed upon timelines.
	75%
	100%

	19
	1.8
	Produce and distribute EN and PSEN electronic newsletters
	Each newsletter includes appropriate topics and number of items and is produced according to the appropriate production schedule.
	90%
	RS

	20
	1.8
	Develop press releases 
	Final press releases are appropriately written, properly cleared, and submitted within the required timeframe.
	90%
	RS

	21
	1.8
	Develop audio products, podcasts, and video products 
	Submitted audio products, podcasts and video products meet all production requirements, are properly cleared, and are properly distributed.
	100%
	RS

	22
	1.8
	Develop and distribute E-marketing pitches & other communications
	E-marketing pitches are appropriately written, properly cleared, and submitted within the required timeframe.
	90%
	RS

	23
	1.8
	Respond to calls and e-mails 
	For calls and e-mails the contractor has responsibility for, appropriate responses provided within 24 hours or by requested time.
	90%
	RS

	24
	1.8
	Maintain the Impact Case Study Program
	An Impact Study's content is complete and accurate, study is properly cleared and submitted by the required due date.
	90%
	100%

	
	1.9
	Knowledge Transfer (KT) and Implementation
	
	

	25
	1.9
	Coordinate KT and implementation activities with the Strategic Planners
	For each KT and implementation activity and sub-activity, contribute to the development of a plan, and articulate and inform Strategic Planners of activity to ensure consistency with Gov’t requirements and AHRQ mission and priorities.
	100%
	100%

	26
	1.9
	Participate in AHRQ-wide meetings
	Based on the needs of the project, participate in AHRQ-wide meetings for the purpose of furthering acceptance of the project, explaining the objectives, approaches, and evaluation of the project, and ensuring that pertinent AHRQ representation and existing research is included in the project. 
	90%
	RS

	27
	1.9
	Participate in on-going KT and Implementation Projects
	Participate effectively in on-going KT/Implementation projects, which may include, but not be limited to: facilitating group meetings, summarizing and tracking group goals and results, monitoring progress of internal timelines (established by AHRQ, and contributing to any project reporting requirements.
	90%
	100%


Attachment 1 - Knowledge Transfer Projects 2008-2009
	New 

	1. Pharmacy Suite of Tools.
Objective: to develop partnerships with key organizations and associations to disseminate and promote select products and tools developed from AHRQ’s Effective Health Care Program.  These target audiences include, but are not limited to, relevant pharmacy stakeholders.



	2. Purchasers Suite of Tools.
Objective: To increase the promotion of selected AHRQ products to purchasers and to document the impact of using the products. The focus of this strategy will be on private sector employers, not public sector purchasers.



	3. Pressure Ulcers.
Objective: To recruit Long-Term Care (LTC) facilities to participate in a 6-month, high intensity, quality improvement Learning Network. Nursing home facilities of varying levels of success in implementing Quality Improvement (QI) initiatives will be encouraged to take advantage of this opportunity to learn new and proven strategies to improve leadership, communication, and teamwork and to share strategies and best practices for developing successful and robust quality improvement programs. Interested facilities should be able to sustain this short-term commitment, have an established QI program, and be willing to share QI processes with other facilities.


	4. Pressure Ulcers.
Objective: To develop a training curriculum and a train the trainer program that will prepare staff within the QIO community to provide technical support to facilities that wish to implement the AHRQ On-Time set of tools. These tools are intended to reduce pressure ulcers or for the purpose of improving overall quality improvement in the long term care setting.  



	5. Increasing Clinicians Use of EHC Program Products.
Objective: To  implement an efficient and effective strategy to disseminate EHC products to clinicians – both Comparative Effectiveness Review executive summaries and Eisenberg products (including summary guides for clinicians and consumers, when available). 



	6. Quality Indicators Learning Network.
Objective: To establish and support a network of organizations who are actively involved in state public reporting initiatives on hospital cost and quality using the AHRQ Quality Indicators (AHRQ QIs). 
The Learning Network would bring together small high-level teams from 15-20 states, the eleven who already publicly report on hospital quality using the QIs, and another 5-10 who are in the process of implementing public reporting using these measures.  The purpose would be to provide an opportunity for peer learning, focusing on those Quality Indicators that are actively going through the NQF process.  As the NQF review nears completion, the learning network will provide a forum through which states can align with and provide common models for using endorsed measures.

	7. Medication Adherence.
Objective: To convene meetings of representatives of key stakeholder groups, including clinicians, consumers, insurers, businesses, states, pharmacists, drug manufacturers, and others to review and promote existing AHRQ research and tools related to medication safety and adherence. Four focus groups also will be conducted. The goal of the groups is to achieve consensus on a set of messages and an action plan for a sustained public education campaign on medication adherence



	8. Emergency Preparedness Webcasts.
Objective To help stakeholders find and use these AHRQ’s emergency preparedness products, especially states and communities. A series of 3 webcasts featuring AHRQ’s emergency preparedness tools will be conducted.


	9. Electronic Preventive Services Selector (ePSS).

Objective: To promote the ePSS as an aid to clinical decision making at the point of care by implementing ePSS data files to vendors of electronic health records and health care systems.  Three vendors will work with AHRQ to create electronic data interchange between ePSS and the vendor’s electronic health records via XML messaging.


	10. Academic Detailing.

Objective: To promote a product line of AHRQ tools and research to specific target audiences. The detail staff would make personal visits to the target audiences to promote appropriate AHRQ materials.  



	On-Going 

	1. Hospital Product Line (including Door to Doc Toolkit).
Objective: Additional funds for this ongoing project were given to add the door to doc toolkit to the existing list of AHRQ products targeted for hospital use.  The funding would allow for assisting five hospitals to implement the toolkit to improve the safety of their emergency department patients.  

	2. Medicaid Care Management Learning Network.
Objective: To continue to improve the care that members of the LN provides to Medicaid beneficiaries.  Activities include one in person meeting for all 17 States that are part of the LN, conference calls, teleconferences, and individual state technical assistance on how to use targeted AHRQ products.  We also will pursue co-sponsoring a meeting with a national group such as NASHP to disseminate AHRQ products related to care management to a broader audience of state program and legislative staff.   


	3. Quality Diagnostic Tools for States. 
Objective: To provide state level technical assistance in using different AHRQ tools.  Some of the technical assistance includes more intensive actual hands-on training on the tools, customization of tools so states can use their own data, and data translation workshops to help users understand how data can be translated to better inform policy decisions. 



	4. Emergency Preparedness Tools for States.
Objective: To provide assistance to community planners in three pilot sites to use one or more of AHRQ’s products to enhance their overall emergency preparedness planning process, operational effectiveness and response to public health emergencies.  The three pilot sites include: San Antonio, TX, Washington, DC, and 2 rural areas in California. Specific emphasis will be placed throughout this initiative on fostering partnerships and integration among public health departments, hospitals and healthcare providers, and emergency management at the state, regional and local levels.  Technical assistance by AHRQ product experts will be tailored to the needs of each of the three pilot sites to ensure that it is fully aligned with their current needs and priorities. 


	5. Medicaid Medical Directors Learning Network .
Objective: To provide evidence-based research information to guide how to best provide care for Medicaid beneficiaries.  Activities include 3 in person meetings, 3-5 web-conferences or audio-conferences, continued work on the atypical antipsychotic use in kids project and other technical assistance as is needed. As new evidence based research becomes available this group will be primed to put the information into use.



	6. Hispanic Elders Learning Network.
Objective: To improve the health and quality of life of Hispanic elders.  Eight metropolitan areas with the nation’s largest Hispanic population, (Chicago, Houston, Los Angeles., McAllen; Miami, New York, San Antonio, and San Diego), were selected to take part in this LN  to reduce health disparities.  The goal is to help communities work together to develop coordinated strategies for improving Hispanic elders’ access to benefits, including the new Medicare prescription drugs benefits, and low-cost, evidence-based prevention programs.


	7. Elders Prevention Learning Network.

Objective: To provide technical assistance to 6 states (Ill, MD, ME, MA, NJ. and OH)  to create community-clinician linkages using evidence-based research that demonstrates how to best provide care for the elderly.  Activities include 2 LN meetings, conference calls, and technical assistance.



Attachment 2 – Interested Vendor List
E-PAGA, Inc.
23338 Robin Song Drive

Clarksburg, MD 20871

POC: William Yu, President & CEO

